
This is a business meeting of the governing body for the City of Herington. There 
is no implied or expressed right for persons outside the governing body to speak 

or voice their opinion unless specifically recognized by the chair. 

Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Call to Order

3. Public Forum

4. Additional Agenda Items:

5. Approval of Agenda

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek 
Commissioner Gares, Mayor Bell 

6. Consent Agenda  

i. Minutes of the Regular Meeting May 2, 2023 
ii. Approval of CMB for Drag Races on May 20, 2023 

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek 
Commissioner Gares, Mayor Bell 

7. Resolution in support of MIH and HTIC Grant Program for Logan Pointe development

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek Commissioner Gares,
Mayor Bell

8. Authorize Purchase of new bucket truck in the amount of $217,964 and Altec 5-year warranty for
$3,310 for a total of $221,274. Consider Truck Chassis 5-year warranty for $7,498

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek
Commissioner Gares, Mayor Bell

9. Discussion on location for Transformer Station

10. Update on Municipal Pool: water leaks, roof improvements, painting

DRAFT



11. Continuation of Public Hearing from April 18– Zachary Freeman – 901 E Arnold, Herington, KS 67449 
on appeal for Environmental Code Violations (Skirting, furniture/trash, tires, appliance on porch)   

 
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek Commissioner Gares, 
Mayor Bell 
 

12. Continuation of Public Hearing from May 2– Zachary Freeman – 901 E Arnold, Herington, KS 67449 
on Environmental Violations (Junk near lot 20)  

 
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek Commissioner Gares, 
Mayor Bell 
 

13. Continuation of Public Hearing from May 2– Zachary Freeman – 901 E Arnold, Herington, KS 67449 
on stop work orders. 
 
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek 
Commissioner Gares, Mayor Bell 

14. Budget & Audit Update and discussion of Budget Workshop Session #1 
 

15. Executive Session – I move that the Herington City Commission recess into Executive Session, 
pursuant to the consultation with an attorney on matters that would be deemed privileged in the 
attorney-client relationship exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2) to discuss contract negotiations to include 
the following: 

 
o Governing Body 
o City Manager 
o City Attorney 
o _________________ 

 
With the open meeting to resume at _________________________. 

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek,  
Commissioner Gares, Mayor Bell 
 

16. City Manager Comments 
 

 
17. Commissioner Comments 

 
 
18. Adjourn 
 

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Castleberry, Commissioner Urbanek, Commissioner 

Gares, Mayor Bell 
 
To join the City Commission meetings from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbvSBw6l4w85XQHSX0S1BXg Public Forum Comments can be 
dropped in the deposit box or emailed to cityoffice@cityofherington.com.   

DRAFT

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbvSBw6l4w85XQHSX0S1BXg
mailto:cityoffice@cityofherington.com


Regular Meeting 
May 2, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 

The Herington City Commission met on the above date and time in the commission chambers at City Hall. 
In attendance were Commissioner Eric Gares, Commissioner Debi Urbanek, Commissioner Ben 
Castleberry, Commissioner Dan McDonald, City Manager Thatcher Moddie, City Attorney Brad Jantz, 
City Clerk Megan Lawrenz, Chief of Police Chad Langley, Fire Chief Andrew Avantagiato and 
Neighborhood Services Director James Masters. Commissioner Bell arrived later. Also in attendance 
were Christina McDonald, Joe Kossmann, Larry Mann, Carl Urbanek, Kevin Koeler and Cynthia Naylor.  
 
The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Vice-Mayor Gares called the meeting to order. 
 
Public Forum – Joe Kossmann – 801 N Broadway, Herington, Kansas 67449 - Big Blue Survey.  

 
Additional Agenda Items: 12.a Walking Trail with USD 487, add 6a. Discussion on right of way for big 
blue.  

Approval of Agenda – Commissioner Urbanek made a motion to approve the agenda with the addition of 
12a and 6a, seconded by Commissioner Castleberry. Motion carried 4-0. 

Consent Agenda – Commissioner Urbanek made a motion to approve the consent agenda containing the 
following items: Minutes of the Regular Meeting April 18, 2023, Approval of CMB for HMH Foundation 
Event on May 27, 2023, Karolyn Schlesener’s application for the Library Board term to expire 4/30/2027, 
and Karen Soliz’s application for the Library Board term to expire 4/30/2027, seconded by Commissioner 
Castleberry. Motion carried 4-0. 

6a. Discussion on right of way regarding Big Blue – City Attorney Brad Jantz recalls an issue about 
having the city needing to vacate the property, staff will investigate. The commission would like this item 
to be added to the next commission meeting agenda. 

National Police Week Proclamation (May 14-20) – Vice Mayor Gares read a proclamation designating 
May 14 – 20th as National Police Week. 

Police Update – There were 342 calls for service, with 2 misdemeanor arrests, 2 felony arrests and 108 
traffic stops. There was a drug bust and an arrest for crimes against children. Sgt. Schantz is attending 
FTO school, and the department still has one vacant full-time position open, but they are hoping to hold 
interviews soon. 

Fire Update – There were 46 calls for service. 1 building fire, 12 brush fires (2 with structures involved), 
15 medical assists, 5 motor vehicle accidents with injuries, 1 gas leak, 3 aircraft fill sites, 2 unauthorized 
burnings, and 8 controlled burnings. Mutual aid was given 6 times and received twice. Training hours 
covered extrication and wildland air ops. One new volunteer application was received, and one denied 
due to background, one volunteer moved away, so the department is still in need of more volunteers. 
McKenna Schlesener was offered the full-time position with the start date of May 15, 2023. Staff will meet 
with the insurance company on Thursday to discuss the rescue truck. They are estimating that a new 
truck will be $420 thousand, while the body can be replaced for $275 thousand. The E911 committee 
continues to meet, the tax bill passed legislation and staff will have more information to come, asking the 
community to support a .25% tax increase. There are several grant opportunities coming up and the 
department will be putting in for wildland pumps/plumbing, and a possible communications grant. The 
Kansas Forest Fire Grant has been submitted for $5700. 

Neighborhood Services Director Update – There were 3 complaints and 34 inspections. There were 2 
grass violations, 1 code violation, 11 permits with 12 inspections, 4 inspections for utility connections and 

DRAFT



6 structural building inspections. He has met with 3 contractors for bids for demolition of the dangerous 
structures. He attended a spring training conference for Kansas Association of Code Enforcement, Heat 
of America, 2021 IBC mean of egress, Disaster Assessment Training (became certified), Officer Safety 
and importance of documentation. The property at Trapp and 3rd has been inspected, he had a 
conversation with the owner of the property who wants to put up a fence, however since the property is in 
the flood plain more steps are needed. 117 W Walnut needs to go on the agenda for the second meeting 
in June. Staff to look at VBO. 

Purchase of new Police Vehicle – Commissioner Urbanek made a motion to approve the purchase of a 
police vehicle as part of the replacement schedule for $44,084.26, seconded by Commissioner 
Castleberry. Motion carried 5-0. 

Electric Transformer purchase and discussion – Commissioner Urbanek made a motion to approve the 
purchase of an electric transformer for $14,312, seconded by Mayor Bell. Motion carried 5-0.  

12.a Consider fee structure for lights on Safe Routes walking trail to USD 487 – Donalyn and Thatcher 
had a discussion that the city would purchase half, and the school board would purchase half of the 
streetlights. Discussion was had on who would cover the cost of the electricity. Staff will set one meter to 
track the cost, but the city will cover the electricity cost. The school board will cover the cost if a light goes 
bad, the electric department will install it. This topic will be on the agenda at the May 15 school board 
meeting. 

Public Hearing – Zachary Freeman – 901 E Arnold, Herington, KS 67449 on Environmental Violation – 
The hearing opened at 6:38pm. Zachary Freeman was not present. This is the second violation written on 
March 31, 2023, for some other debris that need to be cleared out, and a non-compliant RV on the 
property. James updated that a non-compliant RV has been taken care of, but the debris is still under the 
mobile home on the property. Commissioner Gares made a motion to continue the hearing to May 16, 
2023, meeting, seconded by Commissioner Castleberry. Motion carried 5-0. The hearing closed at 
6:51pm. 

Hearing – Zachary Freeman – 901 E Arnold, Herington, KS 67449 on stop work order – The hearing 
opened at 6:51pm. The governing body discussed issuing a stop work order. Mayor Bell made a motion 
to continue the hearing to May 16, 2023, seconded by Commissioner Gares. Motion carried 4-1 with 
Commissioner Urbanek casting the dissenting vote. The hearing closed at 7:01pm. 

Governing Body Goals & Comprehensive Plan Discussion – Priorities include: Budget Planning, 
Infrastructure, Comprehensive Plan, Lake Master Plan, Trail and Trailhead, Community Beautification, 
Downtown Growth and Improvements, Grant Writing Program, Informative Budget Information for the 
Public, Succession Planning for the City, MKC/Bids for Gas and Diesel and Pool Improvements.  

Executive Session – Vice Mayor Gares made a motion that the Herington City Commission recess into 
Executive Session, pursuant to the consultation with an attorney on matters that would be deemed 
privileged in the attorney-client relationship exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2) to discuss contract 
negotiations to include the following: Governing Body, City Manager and City Attorney with the open 
meeting to resume at 7:42pm, seconded by Mayor Bell. Motion carried 5-0. The regular meeting resumed 
with no action taken.  

City Manager Comments – Coffee with the CM, May 24, 8:30-9:30 AM. Auditors coming next 
week. Introduced myself to KS Dept. of Wildlife on Trail project. Wandermore photographer coming to 
town Thursday 5/4/23. Thanks to community groups for cleaning up downtown and parks. Upgrades @ 
Hilltop Community Center. 

Commissioner Comments –  

DRAFT



Commissioner McDonald- Concerned that we are relying on individuals to clean up businesses instead of 
the business owners doing it themselves. 

Commissioner Castleberry – Appreciates the ad hoc group. Asked if the swing at the south park has been 
fixed and was told that it has been pulled down and is being worked on. Asked about the Arbor Day Tree 
Sale, and was told that about 30 trees were sold, but that there were about 15 left.  

Commissioner Urbanek – Asked when the sprint grant is awarded and was told it should be by the end of 
May. Noticed that a lot of work has been done at the lake at the beach area at the lake.  

Commissioner Gares – Asked that city staff look for an alternative place to store the electric department 
transformers and such. Staff have already started looking for an alternate place. 

Mayor Bell – Asked where we are on painting on the street lines/sidewalk lines, commissioners seemed 
to want a new painter to be purchased. Would like to see some work done before the reunion.  

Adjourn – Commissioner Castleberry made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Urbanek. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 

___________________________________ 

Megan Lawrenz, City Clerk 

DRAFT



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING TEMPORARY EXEMPTION FROM THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE II, SECTION 3-204 PROHIBITING SALE  
AND CONSUMPTION OF ANY ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR OR ENHANCED CEREAL MALT 
BEVERAGE ON PUBLIC PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
HERINGTON, DICKINSON COUNTY, KANSAS. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Herington, Kansas generally prohibits consumption of 
alcoholic liquor or enhanced cereal malt beverages on public property within the city limits; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body desires to allow for temporary exemptions from 
such a general prohibition by resolution lawfully approved by majority vote of the governing 
body; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the governing body has received a request for exemption for a public 

event to be held on city property and deems it appropriate to allow for a temporary 
exemption. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
HERINGTON, KANSAS: 
 

1. The governing body hereby finds that a temporary exemption should be 
granted for sale, possession, and consumption of any cereal malt beverage 
including enhanced cereal malt beverages defined as having an alcohol 
concentration of no more than 6.0% by volume and alcoholic liquor, on 
certain public property identified in paragraph 2 of this resolution.   

 
2. The exemption shall apply only to a clearly defined, fenced, or secure area 

in and on the area located at 810 South Broadway with the city of limits of 
the City of Herington, Kansas.  Such defined area as established, and any 
signage or surrounding security barriers identifying the prescribed area, 
shall be approved in advance by the Herington Police Chief. 
 

3. The exemption shall be allowed on Saturday, May 20th, 2023, from five 
o’clock (12:00) p.m. until seven o’clock (5:00) p.m. at which time such 
temporary exemption shall expire. 

 
4. Such exemption shall apply for the sale, possession, and consumption of 

enhanced cereal malt beverages only, defined as having an alcohol 
concentration of no more than 6.0% by volume. 

 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



All necessary permits authorizing the sale, possession, and consumption 
of any cereal malt beverage including enhanced cereal malt beverages 
defined as having an alcohol concentration of no more than 6.0% by 
volume, shall be timely applied for and granted by the appropriate licensing 
agency in advance of the noted date herein as a precondition for award of 
this exemption. 

 
         ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Herington, 
Dickinson County, Kansas this ____ day of May, 2023. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
     _____________________________ 

      Robbin Bell, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Megan Lawrenz, City Clerk 
 
 
 

DRAFT



RESOLUTION NUMBER  
 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF AN 
APPLICATION TO THE KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION (KHRC) 
FOR THE KANSAS HOUSING INVESTOR TAX CREDIT (HITC) AND MODERATE-
INCOME HOUSING (MIH) GRANT. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Investor Tax Credit (HITC) Program authorizes Builders or 
Developers with Projects located in Counties with a population of less than 75,000 to 
apply; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Kansas Moderate Income Housing (MIH) Program authorizes any 

city incorporated in accordance with the laws of the State of Kansas (the "State") with a 
population of less than 60,000 to apply for loans or grants to cities for infrastructure or 
housing development in areas that do not qualify for federal housing assistance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County has a population of less than 75,000 and, therefore, 
constitutes an eligible County as said term is defined by the HITC and MIH program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Herington, Kansas, a municipal corporation, (the 
“Developer”) Developer of the Logan Pointe Project desires to apply for HITC and MIH 
GRANT; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer will apply for HITC credits in association with the 

Project; and 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of Herington, Kansas 
(Governing Body): 
 

SECTION 1. The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that there is a 
shortage of quality housing of various price ranges in the City despite the best 
efforts of public and private housing developers. 
 
SECTION 2. The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that the shortage of 
quality housing can be expected to persist and that additional financial incentives 
are necessary in order to encourage the private sector to construct or renovate 
housing in the City. 
 
SECTION 3. The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that the shortage of 
quality housing is a substantial deterrent to future economic growth and 
development in the City. 
 
SECTION 4. The Governing Body hereby offers support of application for the HITC 
and MIH Grant to the Kansas Housing Resources Corporation for the Logan Pointe 

DRAFT



Project developed by the City of Herington, Kansas, a municipal corporation for 
HITC’s.  
 
SECTION 5. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption and remain in place until May 16, 2024.  

  
 
 
 
 
ADOPTED BY THE HERINGTON CITY COMMISSION and signed, as authorized by 

the City Commission, by the Mayor this 16th day of May, 2023.  
 
 

 
 

____________________________,  
Robbin Bell, Mayor  
 

  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________,  
City Clerk 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 

DRAFT



Quote Number: 1322468-2
Opportunity Number: 22005267

Sourcewell Contract #: 110421-ALT
Date: 4/3/2023

REFERENCE ALTEC MODEL
Sourcewell 

Price
Articulating Telescopic Aerial Device with Material Handling Insulated, 41' $205,024

(A.)

1 AT41M-AWD All Wheel Drive $6,739
2 AT41M-US48M-PE Platform Elevator $4,378
3
4

(A1.)

1
SL

COMPARTMENT LIGHTS in Body Compartments - Strip LED (Qty. 8 
Compartments)          

$1,776

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

SOURCEWELL OPTIONS TOTAL: $217,917

(B.)
1 UNIT $0
2 UNIT & HYDRAULIC ACC $0
3 BODY Steel LGS Body ilo Standard $8,379
4 BODY & CHASSIS ACC Auto Boom Stow $864
5 ELECTRICAL Compartment Light Switch and OEM Backup Camera Install $573
6 FINISHING $0
7 CHASSIS Ford F550 4x4 Diesel Reg. Cab ilo Contract Chassis -$3,358
8 OTHER Altec MY Price Adjustment -$10,688

OPEN MARKET OPTIONS TOTAL: -$4,230

SUB-TOTAL FOR UNIT/BODY/CHASSIS: $213,687
Delivery to Customer: $4,277

FET:
CA Doc/Admin/Tire Fees:
Estimated Taxes (__%): 

TOTAL FOR UNIT/BODY/CHASSIS: $217,964
(C.)

1 5yr. Altec Extended Warranty Labor, Material, Expenses $3,310
2 5yr. Chassis Extended Warranty 150K Miles / $0 Deductible $7,498
3

BUILD LOCATION: Creedmoor, NC

WARRANTY: Standard Altec Warranty for Aerials and Derricks - One (1) year parts warranty One (1) year labor warranty Ninety (90) 

TRADE-IN: Please ask your Altec Account Manager for more information

CHASSIS: Per Altec Commercial Standard
DELIVERY:  No later than _32-36__ months ARO, FOB Customer Location
TERMS:  Net 30 days
BEST VALUE:  Altec boasts the following "Best Value" features: Altec ISO Grip Controls for Extra Protection, Only Lifetime Warranty 
on Structural Components in Industry, Largest Service Network in Industry (Domestic and Overseas), Altec SENTRY Web/CD Based 
Training, Dedicated/Direct Gov't Sales Manager, In-Service Training with Every Order.  

TO ORDER:  To order, please contact the Altec Account Manager listed above.

**Pricing valid for 45 days**
NOTES

PAINT COLOR:  White to match chassis, unless otherwise specified

Quoted by: Callie Byrd

Altec Account Manager: Tim Wilcoxson
Phone: (919) 691-9320  /   Email: callie.byrd@altec.com  

PRICING: Altec will make every effort to honor this quotation, subject to the following provisions. Prices for equipment with 
production start dates 12 months and beyond are budgetary only due to irregular cost inflation and market volatility. These prices will 
be reviewed based on market conditions and confirmed closer to the production date. Quotes and orders with chassis model year 
beyond the current open order bank, should be considered estimates only. Altec's turn-key pricing is subject to change in accordance 
with chassis pricing received from the OEM. Chassis model year, specifications and price will be reviewed and confirmed when 
specific model year information becomes available from the OEM and that chassis price difference will be passed through to the 
customer.

    Altec Industries, Inc.   

SOURCEWELL OPTIONS ON CONTRACT (Unit)

SOURCEWELL OPTIONS ON CONTRACT (General)

OPEN MARKET ITEMS (Customer Requested)

ADDITIONAL ITEMS (items are not included in total above)

AT41M

Quoted for: City of Herington
Customer Contact: David Kahle
Phone: (785) 258-4221 /   Email: electricdept@cityofherington.com

1322468 - City of Herington - AT41M - Sourcewell

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT


	5.16.2023 Agenda
	5.02.2023 Regular Commission Minutes
	RESOLUTION - CMB Airport Drag Races
	1. The governing body hereby finds that a temporary exemption should be
	2. The exemption shall apply only to a clearly defined, fenced, or secure area in and on the area located at 810 South Broadway with the city of limits of the City of Herington, Kansas.  Such defined area as established, and any signage or surrounding...
	3. The exemption shall be allowed on Saturday, May 20th, 2023, from five o’clock (12:00) p.m. until seven o’clock (5:00) p.m. at which time such temporary exemption shall expire.
	4. Such exemption shall apply for the sale, possession, and consumption of enhanced cereal malt beverages only, defined as having an alcohol concentration of no more than 6.0% by volume.
	All necessary permits authorizing the sale, possession, and consumption of any cereal malt beverage including enhanced cereal malt beverages defined as having an alcohol concentration of no more than 6.0% by volume, shall be timely applied for and gra...

	RESOLUTION  - OF SUPPORT HITC & MIH for Logan Pointe
	Altec - BUCKET TRUCK QUOTE
	Transformer Storage Map
	Freeman Hearing Docs



